# **UF** Board of Trustees UNIVERSITY of FLORIDA

# COMMITTEE ON ACADEMIC, FACULTY AND STUDENT SUCCESS, PUBLIC RELATIONS AND STRATEGIC COMMUNICATIONS Meeting Minutes June 13, 2024 President's Room 215B, Emerson Alumni Hall University of Florida, Gainesville, FL Time Convened: 8:45 a.m. Time Adjourned: 11:14 a.m.

# Committee and Board members present:

Rahul Patel (Committee and Board Vice Chair), David L. Brandon, John E. Brinkman, Christopher T. Corr, James W. Heavener, Morteza "Mori" Hosseini (Board Chair), Sarah D. Lynne, Daniel T. O'Keefe, Marsha D. Powers, Fred S. Ridley, Patrick O. Zalupski, and Anita G. Zucker.

### **Others present:**

Ben Sasse, President; Scott Angle, Provost and Senior Vice President for Academic Affairs; Melissa Curry, Vice President for Human Resources; Dan Dillon, Vice President for Marketing and Senior Advisor; Kurt Dudas, Vice President/Jacksonville Lead; Elias Eldayrie, Vice President and Chief Information Officer; Robert Gilbert, Interim Senior Vice President for Agriculture and Natural Resources, Amy Hass, Vice President and General Counsel; Taylor Jantz, Chief Financial Officer; Mark Kaplan, Vice President for Government and Community Relations and University Secretary; David Kratzer, Senior Vice President for Construction, Facilities, and Auxiliary Operations; Maria Gutierrez Martin, Interim Vice President for Advancement; Stephen Motew, President and System Chief Executive Officer of UF Health; David Nelson, Senior Vice President for Health Affairs; Mary Parker, Vice President and Chief Enrollment Strategist; Raymond Sass, Vice President for Innovation and Partnerships; Penny Schwinn, Vice President for PK-12 and Pre-Bachelors Programs; Jim Staten, Senior Advisor to the President; Scott Stricklin, Director of Athletics; James Wegmann, Vice President for Communications; Heather White, Vice President for Student Life; members of the University of Florida community, and the public.

# 1.0 Call to Order and Welcome

Committee and Board Vice Chair Rahul Patel welcomed everyone in attendance and called the meeting to order at 8:45 a.m.

# 2.0 Verification of Quorum

Provost Scott Angle verified a quorum with all members present, except Trustee Cole who had an excused absence.

# 3.0 Review and Approval of Minutes

March 7, 2024, April 29, 2024, and May 14, 2024

Committee Chair Patel asked for a motion to approve the minutes from the March 7, 2024, Committee Meeting, the April 29, 2024, Committee Meeting, and the May 14, 2024, Committee Pre-Meeting, which was made by Trustee Zucker and seconded by Trustee O'Keefe. Committee Chair Patel asked for further discussion, after which he asked for all in favor of the motion and any opposed, and the motion was approved unanimously.

# 4.0 Action Items

# AFSSPRSC1 Tenure Upon Hire

Provost Angle summarized the three Tenure Upon Hire cases. These cases have met the criteria for tenure and have been recommended to the Board by the Provost and President to receive tenure. He noted one case was reviewed at the May Committee Pre-Meeting and two additional cases received approval after that meeting.

- Institute of Food and Agricultural Sciences (IFAS)
  - Dr. Mark Kistler, Professor, Department of Agricultural Education and Communication and Center Director, Indian River Research and Education Center
- College of Liberal Arts and Sciences
  - Dr. Sean Grass, Professor, Department of English
- College of Journalism and Communications
  - Dr. Lindita Camaj, Associate Professor, Department of Journalism

Committee Chair Patel asked for any questions or further discussion. He then asked for a motion to approve Action Item AFSSPRSC1 for recommendation to the Board for its approval on the Consent Agenda, which was made by Trustee Zucker, and second which was made by Trustee Brinkman. Committee Chair Patel asked for further discussion, and then asked for all in favor of the motion and any opposed, and the motion was approved unanimously.

# **AFSSPRSC2** Annual Tenure Awards

Provost Angle stated the Annual Tenure Awards grant tenure and permanent status to faculty who meet the requirements of the university's tenure and permanent status policy. The 130 candidates on the list provided to the Board for approval was fully vetted through the university process, which includes recommendations by the Provost and President.

Committee Chair Patel asked for any questions or further discussion. He then asked for a motion to approve Action Item AFSSPRSC2 for recommendation to the Board for its approval on the Consent Agenda, which was made by Trustee O'Keefe, and second which was made by Trustee Zucker. Committee Chair Patel asked for further discussion, and then asked for all in favor of the motion and any opposed, and the motion was approved unanimously.

# AFSSPRSC3 Self-Supporting Programs

Provost Angle summarized the two college requests for three Self-Supporting Programs:

- The College of Agricultural and Life Sciences proposed to add a new concentration within the Ph.D. in Microbial and Cellular Data Science (CIP 26.0503) and a Master of Science in Interdisciplinary Ecology for Distance Education (CIP 26.1301)
- The College of Liberal Arts and Sciences proposed to develop a fully online Master of Arts in Economics with a concentration in Econometrics and Data Analysis (CIP 45.0603)

Committee Chair Patel asked for any questions or further discussion. He then asked for a motion to approve Action Item AFSSPRSC3 for recommendation to the Board for its approval on the Consent Agenda, which was made by Trustee Zucker, and second which was made by Trustee O'Keefe. Committee Chair Patel asked for further discussion, and then asked for all in favor of the motion and any opposed, and the motion was approved unanimously.

# **AFSSPRSC4** Degree Program Termination

Provost Angle reviewed the one Degree Program Termination request:

• The College of Agriculture and Life Sciences requested to terminate the Masters in Animal Molecular and Cellular Biology. The 5 current students enrolled in the program are expected to complete the program in Spring 2025.

Committee Chair Patel asked for any questions or further discussion. He then asked for a motion to approve Action Item AFSSPRSC4 for recommendation to the Board for its approval on the Consent Agenda, which was made by Trustee O'Keefe, and second which was made by Trustee Zucker. Committee Chair Patel asked for further discussion, and then asked for all in favor of the motion and any opposed, and the motion was approved unanimously.

# AFSSPRSC5 Common Prerequisite Manual Changes

Provost Angle summarized two college requests for four Common Prerequisite Manual Changes:

- The College of Agricultural and Life Sciences proposed to create a separate track for the Agricultural Operations Management degree program and add course alternatives to the Bachelor of Science and Bachelor of Arts in Environmental Sciences degree programs.
- The College of Public Health and Health Professions proposed the Bachelor of Public Health program be added and changed from a specialized admission program to a limited access program, as well as establish 3 new tracks for The Bachelor of Health Science program.

Committee Chair Patel asked for any questions or further discussion. He then asked for a motion to approve Action Item AFSSPRSC5 for recommendation to the Board for its approval on the Consent Agenda, which was made by Trustee Zucker, and second which was made by Trustee O'Keefe. Committee Chair Patel asked for further discussion, and then asked for all in favor of the motion and any opposed, and the motion was approved unanimously.

# **AFSSPRSC6 General Education Courses Annual Review**

Committee Chair Patel stated pursuant to new BOG Regulation 8.005, the Board and President are now required to annually review and approve the courses offered by the institution that meet general education course requirements and submit the approved list to the Florida Department of Education Articulation Coordinating Committee by September 1 of each year. Provost Angle noted over 1,000 courses were reviewed and included in the report.

Committee Chair Patel asked for any questions or further discussion. He then asked for a motion to approve Action Item AFSSPRSC6 for recommendation to the Board for its approval on the Consent Agenda, which was made by Trustee Zucker, and second which was made by Trustee O'Keefe. Committee Chair Patel asked for further discussion, and then asked for all in favor of the motion and any opposed, and the motion was approved unanimously.

## **AFSSPRSC7** New Degrees

Provost Angle summarized two New Degree proposals in the College of Veterinary Medicine: a Ph.D. degree and M.S. degree in Comparative Biomedical Sciences (CIP 26.0102).

Committee Chair Patel asked for any questions or further discussion. He then asked for a motion to approve Action Item AFSSPRSC7 for recommendation to the Board for its approval on the Consent Agenda, which was made by Trustee O'Keefe, and second which was made by Trustee Zucker. Committee Chair Patel asked for further discussion, and then asked for all in favor of the motion and any opposed, and the motion was approved unanimously.

# 5.0 Discussion Items

# 5.1 Admissions Update

Vice President Mary Parker reviewed the 2024 application statistics, noting our goal was to receive 70,000 applications. We exceeded our goal with 74,000 applications received and 17,000 Honors program applications received. Compared to 2019, we have increased our applications by 63% and our Honors program applications by 55%. She and President Sasse visited several low-income and first-generation schools to better understand the needs of these students. The biggest challenge students experienced with confirmations was the delayed federal financial aid award notifications. To assist, the UF Office of Financial Aid and Scholarships created the Gator Spirit Awards. This award tailors financial aid packages for low-income students in Florida to ensure cost will not be a barrier to their decision. This award would not be on top of their federal and student aid, but a data-driven estimation of what aid they will receive. Board Chair Hosseini expressed his gratitude to VP Parker for her hard work the past three years. He noted the Board has seen the change in Enrollment Management, and she has done incredible work to make that happen.

Vice President Raymond Sass provided an update on the SEM Task Force, noting two dozen initiatives are in progress or planned. He focused on the three components of undergraduate student admissions: (1) 76% admitted each year are via the First-Time-In-College (FTIC) pathway and 7% are transfers, (2) 80% enroll in 4 colleges (Liberal Arts and Sciences, Engineering, Business, Agriculture and Life Sciences) and 10% enroll in the Health Sciences colleges, and (3) overall, 90% of our FTIC students enroll in 5 of 16 of our colleges. The same trends can be seen for undergraduate student enrollment in majors. This data gives us the opportunity to have clarity on a reference point on where we can begin our analysis of the cost of supply for our complex organization. President Sasse noted three big purposes we can derive from this data: (1) we need a better understanding of our budget, (2) we can identify the bottlenecks, and (3) we need to better align faculty hiring with student enrollment. Board Chair Hosseini added the benefit of the data can help us open roads for our students. We are the elite university in the state of Florida. The Board established our goal is to also be an elite university in the country.

# 5.2 Faculty Senate Update

Trustee and Faculty Senate Chair Sarah Lynne outlined the initiatives she plans to pursue during her term: (1) U.S. News and World Report ranking factors related to Faculty Excellence, (2) Faculty Recruitment and Retention, and (3) Administrative Burdens on Faculty.

Board Chair Hosseini welcomed Trustee Lynne to the Board and emphasized her passion for the university is shared by the Board. He noted the following: (1) our faculty are the lifeblood of this university, (2) it is our job as fiduciaries of the university to make sure we have the best faculty in

the country, (3) if faculty work hard, we want to ensure they are recognized, instead of unfairly treating everyone the same, (4), we have no political agenda and leave our ideologies at the door, and (5) faculty make the difference in the classroom teaching our students. We want our faculty to understand that this Board and our President are on their side.

# 5.3 Student Body President Update

Trustee and Student Body President John Brinkman outlined the initiatives he plans to pursue during his term: (1) Student Organizations & Funding, (2) Construction Projects in Development, and (3) Other Points & Initiatives (increased communication with students on campus construction projects, continued focus on enhancing campus safety, and Graduate Student Council travel grants to support graduate students attending conferences). Trustee Brinkman added sharing information about construction closures with students ahead of time will create transparency and help put their minds at ease. Committee Chair Patel recommended having a discussion on the tone, substance, and medium of distribution of a potential memo.

Board Chair Hosseini welcomed Trustee Brinkman to the Board and reminded him that he is now a fiduciary of the university. The students are why we are all here. When students graduate from UF, we want them to have more job opportunities than they know what to do with. He asked Trustee Brinkman to bring ideas to the Board that will improve the lives of our students.

# 5.4 Student Life Update

Vice President Heather White provided an update on student engagement efforts over the last year, how we build community, and new initiatives for 2024 and 2025. She noted the three pillars of focus are: (1) Community Connection, (2) Career Design, and (3) Lifelong Well-Being. She highlighted the area of Community Connection and its vital importance to student recruitment and retention. For 2024 and 2025, students can look forward to activities like Preview, the Great Gator Welcome, Student organization & Job fairs, Fall Family Weekend, Homecoming & Gator Growl, Greek recruitment, and E-Sports.

Trustee Brandon commented for the incoming 2028 class, we received all positive feedback. He thanked VP White, and everyone involved. Board Chair Hosseini echoed Trustee Brandon's comments and added students decide to come to UF because they have such a great experience going through the Preview process. They feel like they've been taken care of. Committee Chair Patel provided context that 4 or 5 years ago, we were receiving consistent negative feedback messages, both in the areas of Student Life and Admissions. When VP's White and Parker came on board, they made tremendous improvements.

# 5.5 Top 5 Update

VP's Sass, Parker, and White drilled down on the initiatives that are focused on students. VP Sass stated all the SEM initiatives ultimately impact the student and faculty rankings for U.S. News and World Report. He noted the new rankings formula and the initiatives currently in progress for RY2024. Board Chair Hosseini requested clarification on if the student to faculty ratio of 15 to 1 is the threshold for Top 5 on that specific metric and VP Sass confirmed. President Sasse commented what has happened over the last decade is the student outcomes and performance is off the charts, no other institutions compare. However, the faculty upgrade has not moved at quite the same pace, which is reflected in the expert opinion data. We must continue to focus on the things like the

10x10x10 initiative to try to increase our research publications and to differentiate our faculty between high and low performers.

VP's Parker and White summarized the Student Outcomes initiative highlighting graduation and retention rates of first-generation and low-income students. Overall, we have increased our student retention and graduation rates for these students. Next steps will be to: (1) expand targeted support beyond Machen Florida Opportunity Scholarship (MFOS) students, (2) focus on career from the start, and (3) cohorting, and (4) implementing enterprise-wide technology solutions. Exploratory students are another group we believe we can make significant progress on quickly. In partnership with the College of Engineering, we have developed a pilot study that will utilize intentional coaching to see if we can help these students choose a career pathway sooner and improve their probability of graduating in four years. We will share the results with the Board at a future meeting.

# 5.6 Marketing Update

Vice President for Marketing Dan Dillon shared an update on his first 100 days at UF. The current overarching theme for the UF brand is, "it's a very strong brand; however, it lacks a clear and unique identity." Our goal is to establish a clear and differentiated brand that will help us achieve the objectives of the 10x10x10 initiatives. Our primary strategy is to increase the prestige of an affinity for interest in the UF brand and our family of brands. He outlined the steps we need to take to create and market the One UF brand.

Board Chair Hosseini stated the One UF approach is the only way it works. Marketing must be cohesive. We are decentralized and we have worked hard to become One UF.

# 5.7 Degree Termination Process Update

Committee Chair Patel stated during the Degree Program Termination discussion in the May Committee Pre-Meeting, Board Chair Hosseini tasked the Committee with reviewing all university degrees to see if there are additional degrees that are inefficient and can be eliminated. Provost Angle stated the Provost's Office, working with Associate Provosts Cheryl Gater and Cathy Lebo, developed a critical process to review degree programs. If this Board approves, our next steps would be to implement this Academic Program Review Process.

Board Chair Hosseini stated this new process will help us with stakeholders and shows that we are being proactive. He asked Provost Angle to provide a copy of the process and Provost Angle agreed.

# 5.8 Institute Name Change

Provost Angle shared the UF Space Mission Institute will be renamed the Astraeus Space Institute after the child of Gaia (Earth) and Uranus (Sky) in Greek mythology. He reminded the Board of Dr. Rob Ferl's upcoming Blue Origin space flight in the next two months.

# 6.0 New Business

There was no new business to come before the Committee.

# 7.0 Adjourn

There being no further discussion, Committee and Board Vice Chair Rahul Patel adjourned the meeting at 11:14 a.m.

# **UF** Board of Trustees UNIVERSITY of FLORIDA

# COMMITTEE ON ADVANCEMENT Meeting Minutes June 13, 2024 President's Room 215B, Emerson Alumni Hall University of Florida, Gainesville, FL Time Convened: 11:14 a.m. Time Adjourned: 11:25 a.m.

# Committee and Board members present:

Anita G. Zucker (Committee Chair), David L. Brandon, John E. Brinkman, Christopher T. Corr, James W. Heavener, Morteza "Mori" Hosseini (Board Chair), Sarah D. Lynne, Daniel T. O'Keefe, Rahul Patel (Board Vice Chair), Marsha D. Powers, Fred S. Ridley, Patrick O. Zalupski.

# **Others present:**

Ben Sasse, President; Scott Angle, Provost and Senior Vice President for Academic Affairs; Melissa Curry, Vice President for Human Resources; Dan Dillon, Vice President for Marketing and Senior Advisor; Kurt Dudas, Vice President/Jacksonville Lead; Elias Eldayrie, Vice President and Chief Information Officer; Robert Gilbert, Interim Senior Vice President for Agriculture and Natural Resources, Amy Hass, Vice President and General Counsel; Taylor Jantz, Chief Financial Officer; Mark Kaplan, Vice President for Government and Community Relations and University Secretary; David Kratzer, Senior Vice President for Construction, Facilities, and Auxiliary Operations; Maria Gutierrez Martin, Interim Vice President for Advancement; Stephen Motew, President and System Chief Executive Officer of UF Health; David Nelson, Senior Vice President for Health Affairs; Mary Parker, Vice President and Chief Enrollment Strategist; Raymond Sass, Vice President for Innovation and Partnerships; Penny Schwinn, Vice President for PK-12 and Pre-Bachelors Programs; Jim Staten, Senior Advisor to the President; Scott Stricklin, Director of Athletics; James Wegmann, Vice President for Communications; Heather White, Vice President for Student Life; members of the University of Florida community, and the public.

# 1.0 Call to Order and Welcome

Committee Chair Anita G. Zucker welcomed everyone in attendance and called the meeting to order at 11:14 a.m.

# 2.0 Verification of Quorum

Interim Vice President Maria Gutierrez Martin verified a quorum with all members present, except Trustee Cole who had an excused absence.

# 3.0 Review and Approval of Minutes

March 7, 2024 and May 14, 2024

Committee Chair Zucker asked for a motion to approve the minutes from the March 7, 2024, Committee Meeting, and the May 14, 2024, Committee Pre-Meeting, which was made by Trustee Corr and seconded by Trustee Heavener. Committee Chair Zucker asked for further discussion, after which she asked for all in favor of the motion and any opposed, and the motion was approved unanimously.

# 4.0 Discussion Items

# 4.1 Fundraising Performance (as of May 2024)

Interim VP Martin provided a high-level overview of the university FY2024 fundraising performance. As of June 7, 2024, we have raised \$402M in New Gifts and Commitments. We are projecting \$450M total raised by the end of FY2025. Our Endowment current value is \$2.46B with an estimated FY2025 payout of \$90M. She reminded the Board that 99.9% of the \$402M raised are restricted funds designated by the donor to a specific purpose within the university enterprise.

Board Chair Hosseini emphasized the importance of sharing the detailed assessment of the fundraising numbers with the Board. Committee Chair Zucker and Interim VP Martin confirmed they will provide it at the Retreat.

# 4.2 Summary of FY24 Leadership Gifts

Committee Chair Zucker and Interim VP Martin summarized some of the major gift commitments received in FY2024. Committee Chair Zucker noted these gifts align with President Sasse's university priorities and will have a beneficial impact on our faculty and staff.

# • Research Funding for Advanced & Metastatic Bladder Cancer in Clinical Trials

 An additional gift of \$2.5M from anonymous donors who made an initial test gift and were so impressed by the research they wanted to do more. Their additional gift will be used to support the progression of testing a novel therapy for advanced and metastatic bladder cancer in clinical trials. This new funding will allow for the research to shift to and supplement clinical trials in human subjects.

# • Interdisciplinary Gift of Software & Hardware

- A large undisclosed amount gift from Trimble will be utilized by the Herbert Wertheim College of Engineering (HWCOE) School of Sustainable Infrastructure and Environment, School of Forest, Fisheries, and Geomatics Sciences, and the College of Design, Construction and Planning in the new Ramos Collaboratory. This interdisciplinary gift will enable students to utilize industry-standard technology in the classroom before they begin working in their chosen professions and place students from a variety of disciplines at the cutting edge of technology, innovation, and experiential learning.
- Need-Based Scholarships for COM-Jacksonville Medical Students
  - A \$5M gift from an undisclosed couple who are grateful patients. This gift will provide need-based scholarships to medical students from the College of Medicine-Jacksonville.
- Chair & Professorships in the HWCOE's Department of Electrical and Computer Engineering
  - Over the last year, a generous donor has given more than \$2.5M to elevate his existing professorship to a chair and endow two new professorships for hardware security and quantum computing due to the incredible momentum and commitment to recognizing and recruiting the best and brightest faculty in the Herbert Wertheim College of Engineering's Department of Electrical and Computer Engineering. This gift comes after a

stewardship of his initial \$2M gift that supported rising star faculty awards and professorships in the HWCOE.

- Student Scholarships in the HWCOE's Department of Industrial and Systems Engineering
  - An increased estate commitment of \$5.25M from a donor's trust will support scholarships for entering or enrolled graduate students in the Department of Industrial and Systems Engineering in the Herbert Wertheim College of Engineering. When added to the previous commitment, this additional gift will bring the donor's total realized estate gift to \$12.8M. We should receive the funds in the new few weeks.
- Faculty Excellence in Interdisciplinary and Practical Research
  - We received three generous gifts to support our \$1B+ research output and global recognition goal to recruit and retain the most talented faculty capable of advancing discovery and innovation: 1. \$8.8M gift to support the Department of Astronomy's efforts to bring in world-class faculty, expand research support, enhance state-of-the-art facilities, and recruit graduate and post-doctoral students. 2. Nearly \$7M gift for the College of Veterinary Medicine's Animal Advocacy Initiative which includes two professorships and a few in forensic pathology. This gift also includes external outreach support to help train and educate future scholars and other community stakeholders on how to deter animal abuse; and 3. Additional \$5M estate commitment gift for the College as a national research leader.
- Experiential Learning, Scholarships and Student Recruitment
  - We received a \$6M estate commitment to support the future needs of UF's championship-level Gator Athletics program to guide its forward momentum. We continue to raise funds for Machen Florida Opportunity Scholarship (MFOS) and merit scholarship programs.

# • FY25 Great Expectations

 Looking forward to FY2025, we currently have several initiatives underway in Athletics, UF Health, the Herbert Wertheim College of Engineering, and the College of Education in the areas of nursing, analog AI, computer science, mathematics, and literacy. These initiatives are associated with major 8-figure proposals that will be shared with the Board next quarter.

# 4.0 New Business

There was no new business to come before the committee.

# 5.0 Adjourn

There being no further discussion, Committee Chair Zucker adjourned the meeting at 11:25 a.m.

# **UF** Board of Trustees UNIVERSITY of FLORIDA

# COMMITTEE ON AUDIT AND COMPLIANCE Meeting Minutes June 13, 2024 President's Room 215B, Emerson Alumni Hall University of Florida, Gainesville, FL Time Convened: 11:25 a.m. Time Adjourned: 11:34 a.m.

# Committee and Board members present:

Daniel T. O'Keefe (Committee Chair), David L. Brandon, John E. Brinkman, Christopher T. Corr, James W. Heavener, Morteza "Mori" Hosseini (Board Chair), Sarah D. Lynne, Rahul Patel (Board Vice Chair), Marsha D. Powers, Fred S. Ridley, Patrick O. Zalupski, and Anita G. Zucker.

# **Others present:**

Ben Sasse, President; Scott Angle, Provost and Senior Vice President for Academic Affairs; Melissa Curry, Vice President for Human Resources; Dan Dillon, Vice President for Marketing and Senior Advisor; Kurt Dudas, Vice President/Jacksonville Lead; Elias Eldayrie, Vice President and Chief Information Officer; Robert Gilbert, Interim Senior Vice President for Agriculture and Natural Resources, Amy Hass, Vice President and General Counsel; Taylor Jantz, Chief Financial Officer; Mark Kaplan, Vice President for Government and Community Relations and University Secretary; David Kratzer, Senior Vice President for Construction, Facilities, and Auxiliary Operations; Maria Gutierrez Martin, Interim Vice President for Advancement; Stephen Motew, President and System Chief Executive Officer of UF Health; David Nelson, Senior Vice President for Health Affairs; Mary Parker, Vice President and Chief Enrollment Strategist; Raymond Sass, Vice President for Innovation and Partnerships; Penny Schwinn, Vice President for PK-12 and Pre-Bachelors Programs; Jim Staten, Senior Advisor to the President; Scott Stricklin, Director of Athletics; James Wegmann, Vice President for Communications; Heather White, Vice President for Student Life; members of the University of Florida community, and the public.

# 1.0 Call to Order and Welcome

Committee Chair Daniel T. O'Keefe welcomed everyone in attendance and called the meeting to order at 11:25 a.m.

# 2.0 Verification of Quorum

Vice President and General Counsel Amy Hass verified a quorum with all members present, except Trustee Cole who had an excused absence.

VP Hass introduced the new university Chief Compliance, Ethics and Privacy Officer Chelsey Clements and extended her gratitude to Kate Moore for serving in an interim role after the

departure of the previous Chief Compliance, Ethics and Privacy Officer, Terra DuBois. Committee Chair O'Keefe echoed VP Hass's comments.

# 3.0 Review and Approval of Minutes

# March 7, 2024 and May 13, 2024

Committee Chair O'Keefe asked for a motion to approve the minutes from the March 7, 2024, Committee Meeting, and the May 13, 2024, Committee Pre-Meeting, which was made by Trustee Brandon and seconded by Trustee Powers. Committee Chair O'Keefe asked for further discussion, after which he asked for all in favor of the motion and any opposed, and the motion was approved unanimously.

## 4.0 Action Item

# AC1 July 1, 2024 – June 30, 2025 Office of Internal Audit Work Plan

Chief Audit Executive (CAE) Dhanesh Raniga provided a high-level summary of the proposed internal audit work plan for FY2025. The work plan is not only a requirement of the Florida Board of Governors (BOG), but also a good practice to ensure the audit plans align with university strategies and the finite internal audit resources are deployed effectively. The FY25 work plan incorporates the President's current strategic initiatives, as well as feedback from the Audit and Compliance Committee members, General Counsel, and Senior Management to develop a broader risk-based approach to look at UF at an enterprise level and incorporate strategic and organizational level topics. He highlighted some of the key areas of focus and informed the Committee that the workplan included information on the internal audit project, a high-level scope of work and the rationale for including the topic in the FY25 workplan. The audit workplan will be reviewed quarterly to ensure that the audit projects continue to be relevant, and any changes will be brought to the attention of the Committee for approval.

Committee Chair O'Keefe commented that as Trustees, we are all fiduciaries of this institution. The audit work plan is a particularly useful tool to ensure we are assessing our risk-based areas of concern and aligning with university priorities. He extended his gratitude to CAE Raniga and the Office of Internal Audit team for their hard work and recent staffing hires.

Trustee Brandon commented the detail outlined in the audit work plan is outstanding. As the Board Chair has reiterated many times, we are fiduciaries of the university. There are opportunities across the institution for audits and we are bound to comply with state and Board of Governors (BOG) regulations. Board Chair Hosseini echoed Trustee Brandon and Committee Chair O'Keefe's comments. He emphasized the importance of us having a vigorous auditing process to ensure we are always in compliance. Auditing is especially important to us, both within the regulations and the governance of UF usage of funds. It does not matter if it's state funds, Foundation funds, UF Health funds, or DSO funds. All of these UF funds are one in the same. He also extended his gratitude to the Committee and Office of Internal Audit for their hard work.

Committee Chair O'Keefe asked for any questions or further discussion. He then asked for a motion to approve Action Item AC1 for recommendation to the Board for its approval on the Consent Agenda, which was made by Trustee Brandon, and second which was made by Trustee Powers. Committee Chair O'Keefe asked for further discussion, and then asked for all in favor of the motion and any opposed, and the motion was approved unanimously.

# 5.0 New Business

There was no new business to come before the committee.

# 6.0 Adjourn

There being no further discussion, Committee Chair Daniel T. O'Keefe adjourned the meeting at 11:34 a.m.

# **UF** Board of Trustees UNIVERSITY of FLORIDA

# COMMITTEE ON FACILITIES AND CAPITAL INVESTMENTS Meeting Minutes June 13, 2024 President's Room 215B, Emerson Alumni Hall University of Florida, Gainesville, FL Time Convened: 1:46 p.m. Time Adjourned: 2:43 p.m.

# Committee and Board members present:

David L. Brandon (Committee Chair), John E. Brinkman, Christopher T. Corr, James W. Heavener, Morteza "Mori" Hosseini (Board Chair), Sarah D. Lynne, Daniel T. O'Keefe, Rahul Patel (Board Vice Chair), Marsha D. Powers, Fred S. Ridley, Patrick O. Zalupski, and Anita G. Zucker.

# Others present:

Ben Sasse, President; Scott Angle, Provost and Senior Vice President for Academic Affairs; Melissa Curry, Vice President for Human Resources; Dan Dillon, Vice President for Marketing and Senior Advisor; Kurt Dudas, Vice President/Jacksonville Lead; Elias Eldayrie, Vice President and Chief Information Officer; Robert Gilbert, Interim Senior Vice President for Agriculture and Natural Resources, Amy Hass, Vice President and General Counsel; Taylor Jantz, Chief Financial Officer; Mark Kaplan, Vice President for Government and Community Relations and University Secretary; David Kratzer, Senior Vice President for Construction, Facilities, and Auxiliary Operations; Maria Gutierrez Martin, Interim Vice President for Advancement; Stephen Motew, President and System Chief Executive Officer of UF Health; David Nelson, Senior Vice President for Health Affairs; Mary Parker, Vice President and Chief Enrollment Strategist; Raymond Sass, Vice President for Innovation and Partnerships; Penny Schwinn, Vice President for PK-12 and Pre-Bachelors Programs; Jim Staten, Senior Advisor to the President; Scott Stricklin, Director of Athletics; James Wegmann, Vice President for Communications; Heather White, Vice President for Student Life; Robert Hervey, Vice President for Real Estate and Facilities for UF Health Jacksonville; Colt Little, Associate Vice President for Enterprise Projects and Senior Counsel; members of the University of Florida community, and the public.

# 1.0 Call to Order and Welcome

Committee Chair David L. Brandon welcomed everyone in attendance and called the meeting to order at 1:46 p.m.

# 2.0 Verification of Quorum

Senior Vice President David Kratzer verified a quorum with all members present, except Trustee Cole who had an excused absence.

# 3.0 Review and Approval of Minutes

# March 7, 2024 and May 14, 2024

Committee Chair Brandon asked for a motion to approve the minutes from the March 7, 2024, Committee Meeting, and the May 14, 2024, Committee Pre-Meeting, which was made by Trustee Ridley and seconded by Board Chair Hosseini. Committee Chair Brandon asked for further discussion, after which he asked for all in favor of the motion and any opposed, and the motion was approved unanimously.

# 4.0 Action Items

# **FCI1 Construction Projects Budget Amendments**

SVP Kratzer stated the Construction Projects Budget Report is provided to the Board on a quarterly basis to provide an update on university wide construction activity and highlight any changes to those projects. Any amendments to approved budget thresholds must be presented to the Board for approval.

He provided clarifications to 3 projects that received questions during the May committee premeeting:

- UF-606 Whitney Laboratory for Marine Bioscience: The source of funds is Donor funds made possible by the sale of stocks to the UF Foundation and the requested amendment of \$2M is needed to complete the project.
- UF-654 Honors College Residential Facilities: The bond interest that has been generated cannot be used for other student housing projects, it must be used for that bond and debt financing. We anticipate completing this project under budget. Committee Chair Brandon commented these cost savings on the original bond help us deliver on Board Chair Hosseini's promise to the Board of Governors (BOG). He added a final cost savings report will be provided to the Board.
- UF-685A Holland Law ESCO ITC: This ESCO is not bond funding. It is a low interest loan of 3.5% that was setup through the CFO's Office several years ago. UF Facilities Services only uses the amount of money within that allocation that they need for the project.

# FCI2 Fixed Capital Outlay Legislative Budget Request for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2026

Committee Chair Brandon stated the BOG requires each university to annually submit a fixed capital outlay budget by July 1. This budget submission is used by the BOG to develop their annual Fixed Capital Outlay Legislative Budget Request for the next fiscal year. Due solely to timing, our preliminary FY2025-26 fixed capital outlay budget was not able to be completed until last night. Approval by the Board Chair and President is required.

SVP Kratzer reminded the Board in most cases, only the top 2 priority capital improvement projects receive funding, and they cannot be projects that have previously received funding. It is important to have the other priorities on the list to generate discussion. With those restrictions in mind, we carefully prioritized our capital improvement projects as follows:

- Priority #1 Health Science Building Renovation
- Priority #2 Thermal Infrastructure Plant & Distribution Upgrades
- Priority #3 Dental Science Building Addition
- Priority #4 Hamilton Center

- Priority #5 IFAS Microbiology & Cell Sciences Teaching Lab
- Priority #6 Music Building
- Priority #7 IFAS Florida 4-H: Camp Cherry Lake Outdoor Learning Center Facilities
- Priority #8 Digital Hologram Center

Vice President Mark Kaplan recommended to amend the action item to include granting authority to the Board Chair and President to make revisions to the fixed capital outlay budget request prior to submission to the BOG and Committee Chair Brandon agreed.

Committee Chair Brandon asked for any questions or further discussion. He then asked for a motion to approve Action Item FCI2 and granting authority to the Board Chair and President to make necessary changes for recommendation to the Board for its approval on the Consent Agenda, which was made by Board Chair Hosseini, and second which was made by Trustee Zucker. Committee Chair Brandon asked for further discussion, and then asked for all in favor of the motion and any opposed, and the motion was approved unanimously.

# FCI3 Facilities Spending Plan for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2025

SVP Kratzer summarized the 9 PECO and 11 CITF projects for a total of \$248M in state appropriations awarded to UF for FY2025.

Committee Chair Brandon asked for any questions or further discussion. He then asked for a motion to approve Action Item FCI3 for recommendation to the Board for its approval on the Consent Agenda, which was made by Board Chair Hosseini, and second which was made by Trustee Zucker. Committee Chair Brandon asked for further discussion, and then asked for all in favor of the motion and any opposed, and the motion was approved unanimously.

Board Chair Hosseini added the \$80M we received for the Florida Semiconductor Institute is a game changer.

# FCI4 Five-Year Educational Plant Survey

SVP Kratzer stated an Educational Plant Survey (EPS) is required to be conducted once every 5 years for all public educational entities in the State of Florida, including state universities, per Section 1013.13 of the Florida Statutes. This is a survey of our space on campus and how it is allocated to laboratories, teaching, and housing. It is also tied to the PECO funding list. If we do not meet all the requirements of the Educational Plant Survey, we would not be eligible for PECO funding. A UF Survey Team was created to ensure all requirements were satisfied. Additionally, we collaborated with several of our sister state universities (UWF, UCF, UNF, FAMU, and FGCU) to continue to foster our partnership across the state. He expressed his gratitude to Director Frank Phillips and the Business Affairs Technical Services team, BOG staff, and the Business Affairs team for their hard work.

Committee Chair Brandon asked for any questions or further discussion. He then asked for a motion to approve Action Item FCI4 for recommendation to the Board for its approval on the Consent Agenda, which was made by Trustee Zucker, and second which was made by Trustee

Heavener. Committee Chair Brandon asked for further discussion, and then asked for all in favor of the motion and any opposed, and the motion was approved unanimously.

# FCI5 UF-698 Center for Applied Artificial Intelligence (IFAS) Design Team

SVP Kratzer shared three design teams were shortlisted based upon their qualifications for the Center for Applied Artificial Intelligence at the UF/IFAS Gulf Coast Research and Education Center (GCREC) in Balm, FL. The UF selection committee conducted interviews on February 21, 2024 and ranked the teams. The Committee will be asked to approve the final negotiations contract for the top ranked design team of Bohlin Cywinski Jackson.

Interim Senior Vice President Rob Gilbert commented this is a revolutionary project for IFAS. It will help us with precision agricultural projects using robotics and is vitally important for our agricultural and natural resources throughout the state. Committee Chair Brandon added the UF/IFAS GCREC is where we are currently using robotics to identify fungus on strawberries and can be credited singlehandedly with saving the strawberry industry in Florida. It's this significant level of research that is being done at this facility.

Committee Chair Brandon asked for any questions or further discussion. He then asked for a motion to approve Action Item FCI5 for recommendation to the Board for its approval on the Consent Agenda, which was made by Trustee O'Keefe and second which was made by Trustee Zucker. Committee Chair Brandon asked for further discussion, and then asked for all in favor of the motion and any opposed, and the motion was approved unanimously.

# FCI6 UAA-62 Ben Hill Griffin Stadium Construction Management Team

Committee Chair Brandon stated the construction management team for the Ben Hill Griffin Stadium (BHG) multi-phase renovation project went through the Technical Review Committee (TRC) and the recommendation was unanimously approved. This action item is to approve the BHG construction management team of Brasfield & Gorrie.

Committee Chair Brandon asked for any questions or further discussion. He then asked for a motion to approve Action Item FCI6 for recommendation to the Board for its approval on the Consent Agenda, which was made by Board Chair Hosseini, and second which was made by Trustee Ridley. Committee Chair Brandon asked for further discussion, and then asked for all in favor of the motion and any opposed, and the motion was approved unanimously.

# FCI7 UF Health Florida Surgical Center Orthopaedic Surgery Expansion Construction Management Team

Vice President for Real Estate and Facilities for UF Health Jacksonville Robert Hervey stated the Florida Surgical Center (FSC) is located on 34<sup>th</sup> Street next to the UF Hilton Hotel. This expansion project would add 8 operating rooms (OR's) to Orthopaedic Surgery. From the 8 solicited construction management team bids, 3 were shortlisted based on their qualifications. The teams were presented to the TRC to review and 1 was unanimously approved. The Board is asked to approve the FSC Orthopaedic Surgery Expansion construction management team of Robins & Morton.

Committee Chair Brandon asked for any questions or further discussion. He then asked for a motion to approve Action Item FCI7 for recommendation to the Board for its approval on the Consent Agenda, which was made by Trustee O'Keefe, and second which was made by Trustee Zucker. Committee Chair Brandon asked for further discussion, and then asked for all in favor of the motion and any opposed, and the motion was approved unanimously.

# FCI8 Naming: Jonathan and Melanie Antevy Hall

Interim Vice President Maria Gutierrez Martin stated this gift will name the Architecture Building the "Jonathan and Melanie Antevy Hall." Per the UF Naming and Memorial policy, the minimum gift requirement for pledges should not exceed 5 years, but this gift does. However, this gift is in good standing, internal due diligence has been completed, and it has the approvals of UF Advancement, the President, and the Board Chair.

Committee Chair Brandon asked for any questions or further discussion. He then asked for a motion to approve Action Item FCI8 for recommendation to the Board for its approval on the Consent Agenda, which was made by Trustee Corr, and second which was made by Trustee Zucker. Committee Chair Brandon asked for further discussion, and then asked for all in favor of the motion and any opposed, and the motion was approved unanimously.

# 5.0 Discussion Items

# 5.1 Campus Construction Update

SVP Kratzer provided a brief update on the construction dashboard. The volume of work that is under construction at UF is unparalleled. 244 total projects equating to almost \$2B, with 10 of those projects currently under construction equating to \$406M of that total.

Assistant Vice President for Facility Services Mark Helms provided brief updates on Deferred Maintenance and Minor Projects.

- Deferred Maintenance: We are on target to have all the funds encumbered by December 24 and expensed by December 26 as scheduled. We are in a great position for future audits because the offices of Planning, Design and Construction and Facilities worked diligently to put everything in place before we started. We received \$148M in deferred maintenance federal funds, more than double of any other SUS university, but our deferred maintenance costs have continued to grow. He emphasized the importance of the Board continuing this fight for us with the legislators and added we need to be forward thinking on creative ways to help finance these types of projects. UF/IFAS is also facing these same type of project challenges.
- Minor Projects: In 2014, the decision was made to move all department funded minor projects (\$0-\$4M) to Planning, Design and Construction. In 2015/2016/2017, Facility Services created pilot programs that puts maintenance mechanics in zones with housekeeping staff. We now call these High-Performance Work Teams. We have seen a 75% reduction in calls from departments about work that needs to be done in their buildings. Currently, we have 6 zones throughout campus, but anticipate 12 zones will be needed to cover the entire campus. We have begun to see opportunities to rethink the way we do business regarding maintenance and projects. Working with SVP Kratzer, we have allocated funds to manage projects \$25K and less through Facility Services to reduce the burden on departments. The mission of Facility Services is to provide world class maintenance to

support the incredible research conducted at our institution. We will continue to push ourselves and expand these programs to grow exponentially.

Trustee Brandon emphasized the importance of continuing talks with legislators and the Governor to create an annual recurring funding source to combat the never-ending cost increase of deferred maintenance. It cost exponentially more to take care of deferred maintenance than it does capital maintenance. There is a big difference. Under the leadership of SVP Kratzer, we have separated the minor and major projects into 2 teams and transitioned construction accounting into the CFO's Office, which has improved our internal efficiency.

Assistant Vice President for Planning, Design and Construction and University Architect Sydney McGlothlin provided a brief update on Major Projects.

- Recent Demolitions: 2 buildings in the Health Science Surge Area
- **Planned Demolitions:** 6 buildings including wave tank in Coastal Engineering (TBD) and 50 buildings in UVS/Maguire (Summer 2024)
- **Construction Phase:** Whitney Laboratory for Marine Bioscience, Inner Drive, Architecture Building, Honors College Residential, Holland Law, Broward Dining
- **Design Phase:** Thompson Center for Earth Science, New Disability Resource Center, Flavet Outdoor Recreation, Chemical Engineering, Center for Applied Artificial Intelligence (IFAS), Dental Science, Communicore, Basic Science, Hamilton Center
- Planning Phase: Utility Infrastructure (Fletcher Rd)
- CIP Funding Considerations: Leigh Hall, Rolf Hall, Sisler Hall, Walker Hall
- Post-Occupancy: Malachowsky Hall (DSIT), Student Health Care Clinic

# 5.2 Facility Services/Housing Shared Services Update

SVP Kratzer began by stating we truly are One UF. Business Affairs working in collaboration with Vice President Heather White's Student Life office, we have moved 200+ employees from one side of the ledger to the other to take advantage of the efficiencies AVP Helms spoke about. Our task was to have this process completed by July 1<sup>st</sup> and it is done now. We will be able to begin measuring the data of these efficiencies and discuss what we have learned in our next report. He announced a new Director of Building Services with a stellar reputation has been hired to lead the shared services team. We believe this is the way of the future and bodes well for our wallet. He expressed his gratitude to VP White and her team and she shared her gratitude to SVP Kratzer and his team.

Committee Chair Brandon commented this collaboration of shared services could not have gone better. SVP Kratzer and VP White did a marvelous job. He said Board Chair Hosseini tasked us with producing shared services measurables almost 2 years ago and we'll be able to bring that report to the Board at upcoming meetings. Board Chair Hosseini commented this is the best news he's heard all day. This clearly shows that collaboration works. We never could have made this happen if we did not hold everyone accountable. If we didn't challenge them. It says to work together, try to create solutions. And if you don't work together to fix things, we will fix it for you. This will help our students and faculty. He expressed his gratitude to everyone involved in making this happen.

# 5.3 Construction Policy and Regulation Update

Associate Vice President for Enterprise Projects and Senior Counsel Colt Little provided a brief overview of the changes to construction policies and regulations. As discussed in the GGRIA Committee, there were changes to statutes and subsequently BOG regulations that required UF to amend its own regulations. We were able to amend 1 UF regulation and repeal 4 UF regulations and replaced those regulations with policies. He expressed his gratitude to AVP McGlothlin and Casey Joy for their relentless efforts to craft a new way of doing business that would achieve our goals and increase efficiency. These policies give us more flexibility in the procurement process, a significant advantage in negotiations, make us more competitive, and are more transparent and easier to understand. Overall, this will significantly impact our capital side and the way that we do business.

## 6.0 New Business

There was no new business to come before the committee.

## 7.0 Adjourn

There being no further discussion, Committee Chair David L. Brandon adjourned the meeting at 2:43 p.m.

# **UF** Board of Trustees UNIVERSITY of FLORIDA

# COMMITTEE ON FINANCE, STRATEGIC PLANNING AND PERFORMANCE METRICS Meeting Minutes June 13, 2024 President's Room 215B, Emerson Alumni Hall University of Florida, Gainesville, FL Time Convened: 2:43 p.m. Time Adjourned: 4:16 p.m.

# Committee and Board members present:

Marsha D. Powers (Committee Chair), David L. Brandon, John E. Brinkman, Christopher T. Corr, James W. Heavener, Morteza "Mori" Hosseini (Board Chair), Sarah D. Lynne, Daniel T. O'Keefe, Rahul Patel (Board Vice Chair), Fred S. Ridley, Patrick O. Zalupski, and Anita G. Zucker.

# **Others present:**

Ben Sasse, President; Scott Angle, Provost and Senior Vice President for Academic Affairs; Melissa Curry, Vice President for Human Resources; Dan Dillon, Vice President for Marketing and Senior Advisor; Kurt Dudas, Vice President/Jacksonville Lead; Elias Eldayrie, Vice President and Chief Information Officer; Robert Gilbert, Interim Senior Vice President for Agriculture and Natural Resources, Amy Hass, Vice President and General Counsel; Taylor Jantz, Chief Financial Officer; Mark Kaplan, Vice President for Government and Community Relations and University Secretary; David Kratzer, Senior Vice President for Construction, Facilities, and Auxiliary Operations; Maria Gutierrez Martin, Interim Vice President for Advancement; Stephen Motew, President and System Chief Executive Officer of UF Health; David Nelson, Senior Vice President for Health Affairs; Mary Parker, Vice President and Chief Enrollment Strategist; Raymond Sass, Vice President for Innovation and Partnerships; Penny Schwinn, Vice President for PK-12 and Pre-Bachelors Programs; Jim Staten, Senior Advisor to the President; Scott Stricklin, Director of Athletics; James Wegmann, Vice President for Communications; Heather White, Vice President for Student Life; William Reeser, Chief Investment Officer of UFICO; members of the University of Florida community, and the public.

# 1.0 Call to Order and Welcome

Committee Chair Marsha D. Powers welcomed everyone in attendance and called the meeting to order at 2:43 p.m.

# 2.0 Verification of Quorum

Chief Financial Officer Taylor Jantz verified a quorum with all members present, except Trustee Cole who had an excused absence.

# 3.0 Review and Approval of Minutes

# March 7, 2024 and May 13, 2024

Committee Chair Powers asked for a motion to approve the minutes from the March 7, 2024, Committee Meeting, and the May 13, 2024, Committee Pre-Meeting, which was made by Trustee Brandon and seconded by Trustee O'Keefe. Committee Chair Powers asked for further discussion, after which he asked for all in favor of the motion and any opposed, and the motion was approved unanimously.

# 4.0 Action Items

# FSPPM1 Preliminary Operating Budget FY25

CFO Jantz stated we are required to annually submit a preliminary operating budget to the Florida Board of Governors (BOG) for approval. The Preliminary Operating Budget FY25 is our projection of how we anticipate the university will look financially for the coming year. As we all know, Governor DeSantis officially signed the budget yesterday. He will report to the Board on the actual detailed budget at an upcoming meeting. Committee Chair Powers noted she reviewed the preliminary budget with CFO Jantz and some areas appeared to have significant increases in expenses. To better understand these increases, she asked for a chance to review the trends in these areas for the past 3 years. She recommended approving the FY25 preliminary budget subject to this review and grant authority to the Board Chair to make any adjustments or amendments, as necessary. CFO Jantz added for the first time in UF history, we will be submitting a \$10B+ budget due to growth across the university and UF Health. As well as Board Chair Hosseni's dedication in Tallahassee for making UF a university on the rise.

Committee Chair Powers asked for any questions or further discussion. She then asked for a motion to approve Action Item FSPPM1, subject to review of trends in areas of increased expenses for the past 3 years and authority granted to the Board Chair to make any adjustments or amendments as necessary to the preliminary operation budget, for recommendation to the Board for its approval on the Consent Agenda, which was made by Trustee Patel, and second which was made by Trustee O'Keefe. Committee Chair Powers asked for further discussion, and then asked for all in favor of the motion and any opposed, and the motion was approved unanimously.

# FSPPM2 Estimated Direct Support Organization Use of University Resources (FY25)

CFO Jantz stated this annual estimated summary of Direct Support Organization (DSO) Use of University Resources is a standard submission of the BOG. He noted nothing is out of the ordinary for this year, but we must still report this information.

Committee Chair Powers asked for any questions or further discussion. She then asked for a motion to approve Action Item FSPPM2 for recommendation to the Board for its approval on the Consent Agenda, which was made by Trustee Patel, and second which was made by Trustee O'Keefe. Committee Chair Powers asked for further discussion, and then asked for all in favor of the motion and any opposed, and the motion was approved unanimously.

# FSPPM3 Adoption of Student Payment Plan Mechanism

CFO Jantz stated as discussed in the May Committee Pre-Meeting, unlike many of our Florida SUS peer universities, UF does not offer a payment plan mechanism for our students. Currently,

they either pay all fees up front or they incur late fees. This will add flexibility for our students and will not have any financial impacts to our operating margins. He expressed his gratitude to the Bursar who identified a need for our students and a successful pilot program pathway. To cover the cost of the third-party vendor management, we are requesting the Board approve a \$15 service fee per enrollment in installment plans.

Committee Chair Powers asked for any questions or further discussion. She then asked for a motion to approve Action Item FSPPM3 for recommendation to the Board for its approval on the Consent Agenda, which was made by Trustee Patel, and second which was made by Trustee O'Keefe. Committee Chair Powers asked for further discussion, and then asked for all in favor of the motion and any opposed, and the motion was approved unanimously.

# 5.0 Discussion Items

# 5.1 CFO Report

CFO Jantz shared the CFO's Office took part in its first ever team retreat. We have about 200+ finance employees across our division. They're working hard, closing the books, making sure that people get paid, keeping the lights on along with SVP Kratzer's team. They are the reason that we're successful in continuing to push boundaries as a finance organization. I can't thank my team enough for the day in and day out work that we do.

Board Chair Hosseini turned the meeting over to the President for an announcement. President Sasse stated the run up to board meetings are often a great opportunity for announcements. Thank you to all 13 members of this board who make so much time to come to campus. The Chairman and I have been thinking through the sequencing of different announcements over the course of the coming quarter. Because Committee Chair Powers has advocated so zealously on behalf of your work and because I believe in people who are a combination of EQ and IQ, and we like to "try before you buy," I would like to request the Chairman's permission to rip "Interim" off CFO Jantz's title. Board Chair Hosseini stated done, approved! Committee Chair Powers commented I think that is very well-deserved. I have had the opportunity to work with Taylor over the last year or so and I can tell you that he is right up there with the best. CFO Jantz expressed his thanks to everyone. It is a pleasure to serve and exciting to get to work with each of you. I'm looking forward to what we have ahead of us.

# • Quarterly Financials Update (Q3 FY24)

As has been the story throughout the year, we remain fiscally stable and strong. There are a variety of factors, a lot around investment performance. Our UFICO research portfolio continues to grow. Our Board Chair has done a great job with state support, that is evident through our bottom line. Dr. Motew will tell a great story of what we're able to continue to do for UF Health. In Athletics, we've seen increases in ticket sales. While there are efficiencies to be gained, we are a university in momentum.

# • Baby Gator

At a previous board meeting, Chairman Hosseini tasked us with providing an update on Baby Gator, our childcare service here on the UF campus. We are doing things that the rest of the community just doesn't do. I propose this be a multiple part series of updates. Trustee Zalupski and I will continue to work together to really dig deeper, understand how we can maintain our

competitive advantage, and make sure our employees are getting the benefits. Director of Baby Gator Stacy Ellis will provide an overview, so the Board has a baseline level of understanding to start with.

Trustee Zalupski agreed and shared they had a great tour yesterday and expressed his thanks to Trustee Zucker. We know Chairman Hosseini would like to see a much more rigorous analysis. We'll be talking to you through this process and will come back to the Board in 90 days with more information on the costs, how much we want to subsidize, and our community competitors. Board Chair Hosseini reemphasized we are demanding excellence from our faculty and our staff. We hold them accountable on one side and on the other side, we must show them we care. I think providing their children with the best care and learning while they're working makes a big difference in their lives. I think that brings even more productive to the university and almost pays for itself. We will review all the information when you bring it back to us. Trustee Zalupski added Trustee Zucker was very kind and gracious in a significant contribution to the current Lake Alice facility, but the other two facilities are dilapidated. Trustee Zucker and I are going to look at previous facility proposals and budgets. We will come back to you with some detail analysis. Vice President for Human Resources Melissa Curry introduced the Director of Baby Gator Stacey Ellis. She has been with Baby Gator since 2002 and became Director in 2016.

Director of Baby Gator Stacy Ellis began by expressing her gratitude to the Board for the support they've given to our program. Baby Gator is much more than just caring for and educating young children. Currently, Baby Gator has 3 centers: Lake Alice (our largest facility), Newell Drive, and Diamond Village. You can see that our mission is to educate young children and to provide care for the children of faculty, staff, and students. However, a huge part of our mission is to provide service in other capacities to the university. What is different about Baby Gator is that we have a different level of standard. We hire above and beyond the standard requirement for teacher. 92% of our teachers have degrees and credentials specific to early childhood. In the industry, it's about 46%. We are nationally recognized as a model demonstration center. We are accredited by the gold standard of accreditation, the National Association for the Education of Young Children (NAEYC). There are only 4 centers in Alachua County, and we have 3 of the 4 accreditations. We write grants. I wrote a Department of Education federal grant 3.5 years ago that brought in \$2M to support low-income student families so that they can have their child come and attend a quality center and then complete their degree and graduate. We host about 14,000 hours of UF student volunteers, interns, and practicum providing experiential learning from our program. Community childcare facilities have a different level of standard than we do. The Department of Children and Families (DCF) ratios for student to teacher are significantly higher than the NAEYC student to teacher ratios are. Our centers follow those smaller NAEYC ratios, which allows us to be able to do the things that we need to do to provide quality care and implement the other services within our program. We have a dual mission to educate young children and to provide these laboratory services. It really is amazing how many campus partners and students we have from across campus. We're working with departments and colleges to help students' complete coursework and to spend time piloting specific data assessment tools that can be used statewide to collect data. We pride ourselves in having research backed, researchbased approaches to how we educate young children, and how we educate UF students when they come through our doors. That's another reason why our teachers have degrees and credentials in their area because they are working one on one with UF students and faculty who come and use our center for research. Compared to the other SUS institutions, UF and Baby Gator by far and away have the largest early childhood program in the state. We are looked at as the #1 model. Compared to the Top 5 public institutions, we are right up at the top leading the board with the number of spaces that we offer for children and the quantity and quality of our program. Currently, we have 200+ families on our waiting list, most of them are infants and toddlers. Infant and toddler care is hard to find in our community, state, and nation right now. We are working towards making sure that we're hiring and keeping our classrooms full so that we're able to enroll consistently. Finally, the weekly cost of care is broken into tuition rates for Faculty/Staff and Students, with our student families paying a lower tuition rate. Our cost is higher than what we are charging. In the community, the average tuition rate is higher than what we're charging as well. Our cost is a little bit higher because we are hiring degreed teachers, and our operations are higher because we have 3 separate centers.

Trustee O'Keefe asked if Director Ellis could provide an update on the Diamond Village renovations. Director Ellis stated we are in the early stages of design right now, but we're looking at how the budget lines up. The projected costs right now are more than double what we originally thought. She stated Trustee Zalupski, CFO Jantz, and Trustee Zucker are going to help us with that. Trustee Zalupski commented if it costs \$5M to renovate a dilapidated building, it probably just needs to be torn down. We will come back to the Board with that information. President Sasse asked if we have data on where the families on our waiting list go to and how many of them move to us if they're offered a slot but they've already enrolled somewhere else. Director Ellis stated we do have a list of other centers in town that our waiting list families go to. When we do offer spaces, generally they will put in their notice and come to us. We have a 30-35% decline rate, usually with the older children because they're well-established in the other community centers. She added the reason it takes anywhere from 2-to-3 years to get offered a spot from our waiting list, depending on the age of your child, is because people come and stay. They will start with us as infants and they'll move all the way through VPK, which is the entry into kindergarten level. We really only actively turnover spaces once a year. Board Chair Hosseini stated we are trying to hire great faculty and one of the recruitment tools VP Curry could use is our exceptional daycare services. If a new faculty member accepts the position and say they are ready to put their children in daycare, we tell them they must wait 2-3 years? Director Ellis confirmed that is correct. Board Chair Hosseini stated that does not help us with faculty recruitment. It can make a huge difference when we can say, I want you to go and look at our daycare center while you're deciding to come here or go to this other university. VP Curry agreed and added we do receive requests from deans that are really wanting us to hold spots for them as part of recruitment. Trustee Zalupski commented because of space, we're thinking maybe you could go into a lottery system. That wouldn't solve the issue, but it would help in the short term. Trustee Zucker noted the 2-to-3 year waiting list shows how important this is for retention and attracting new talent to this university. The one thing about Baby Gator is how critically important the life and the learning is from the moment that baby enters until they leave us. If they don't have a family situation that's good, those children are going to be 30 million words behind by not being in our centers. And you can't catch up when you get to that point in your life. This is an important piece of starting out and providing children a great foundation for living and for their lives. Committee Chair Powers added it is also a tremendous recruitment tool for UF Health and Nursing. If you look at the shortage and what we're paying for salaries, it would be helpful if we

could do some type of expansion to address some of the issues. Trustee Zalupski noted even though the waiting list is currently 200+, you might have 300-400 more interested. Director Ellis closed by expressing her thanks to the Board, especially to Trustee Zucker for their support of the Lake Alice facility. It is truly amazing and exceeds our expectations.

# • Sources and Uses of New State Funding & Radical Financial Transparency

Vice President Mark Kaplan brought to the Board at a previous meeting, this different way to look at our explosive growth in state funding since 2017. This update will show how we leverage those funds. Most new state funding (+\$250M) has been directly invested into faculty compensation and hiring initiatives since 2017, resulting in a 17% increase to the average faculty's salary. If you look across the higher education landscape, a lot of states are pulling investment in higher education and you're seeing increases in tuition rates. It's not a sustainable model for many of our peers throughout the nation. At UF, thanks to the support of the state and how we've been able to leverage funding, we continue to see large growth in not just our faculty salaries, but also our faculty numbers. In FY2014 and FY2015, we saw a decline in our number of faculty. This Board made a concerted effort to recruit the best and brightest faculty to build something special here at UF that not only has a direct correlation to our ranking, but also our student experience. We had 2,400 faculty in FY2016, we increased to 3,200 faculty in FY2024. This is a direct investment that we can show Tallahassee we are we are putting state funding to work to get the best and brightest in Florida and continue our meteoric rise up the rankings to be an elite institution in the nation. This is one example of a much larger engagement that is currently underway with our university known as Radical Financial Transparency (RFT). We must educate the populace on the importance of higher education, that we are the best investment of dollars in the state of Florida and in the nation. This project will show how we've invested our money, where our faculty salaries have gone, and our research portfolio. We have completed a pilot phase, and our next step will be to solicit input from the Board. As we've already communication to the deans and vice presidents, in fall we will assess the remaining units that have not gone through this process to gather the data. By December, the Board will have an understanding of how the ins and outs of our funds flow work. Our pilot program included a variety of academic, administrative, auxiliary, and enterprise-wide units. We worked with President Sasse and Vice President Ray Sass on understanding who we are as an academic institution, where we invest our dollars, and how units are leveraging those funds.

President Sasse and I expressed our gratitude to new College of Nursing Dean Shakira Henderson for participating in the pilot project. Dean Henderson shared her positive experience participating in the RFT pilot project and briefly summarized three overarching themes: Building a culture of transparency, Enabling data-driven decision-making, and Supporting strategic planning & improvement. She stated data is the currency of communication. The ability to share information transparently to all our stakeholders continues to improve trust and accountability. As a new dean, participating in the RFT pilot project provided me the opportunity to conduct a timely and thorough assessment. CFO Jantz thanked Dean Henerson for her sharing her experience and added she made a great point that that is so much data and ways of communicating about ourselves.

# • Housing - Financing Capacity Update

Our housing capacity will increase this fall thanks to the completion of Honors Village. From freshman to sophomore, there is a de-escalation of students that live on campus. Graduate students living on-campus is an ongoing area of focus that we'll continue to look at. The need for housing is evident and will be a focus moving forward. Compared to off-campus proximity private housing, we are very competitively priced. On average, it costs a student \$818 a month to live on-campus versus \$1,400 off-campus. As Vice President Heather White has discussed with the Board previously, on-campus living has many benefits for students like increased GPA, connectedness to community, and proximity to coursework.

Trustee Corr asked how many single, double, or more units we have on campus versus how many units there are in off-campus proximity housing. VP White stated most units on campus are single or double. Further discussion ensued regarding capacity and cost with Trustees Corr and O'Keefe, Chairman Hosseini, and VP White. CFO Jantz stated he will provide the data analysis on unit capacities and cost percentage comparisons to the Board.

CFO Jantz continued by stating the budget of our housing entity is an auxiliary. Anything they charge in rents, they expend in personnel, operating expenses, or an annual debt payment. This creates a very lean budget. If there are additional funds, they would be put towards deferred maintenance or other upgrades to our facilities. Because of our current rates, we are not able to significantly address deferred maintenance, which is hindering our housing standards compared to off-campus proximity private housing. Trustee Brandon stated it is a never-ending battle of the need to have the revenue to justify the bond, but how do we get the revenue if we don't have the beds. We are restricted by state statutes. Board Chair Hosseini commented we know the benefits of students living on-campus versus off-campus are day and night. That is very important to us. And we know if students had the option of paying a few hundred more dollars a month to be right on campus, they would. We are going to take this on. Before bringing this to Legislators and the Board of Governors in Tallahassee for a big ask, we need this Board's approval at an upcoming meeting. We must try to increase our capacity to 8,000-10,000 beds. It's much easier to borrow money for housing because it pays, and the profits can offset the cost of the teaching space. Trustee O'Keefe commented the ultimate beneficiary of this would be our students. It helps them financially, improves their quality of life, and increases their performance and engagement with the university. President Sasse agreed and added it also ultimately affects our rankings and output success. The data shows student retention, learning acquisition, and mental health are all higher. The best-in-class model among elite institutions is 100% of freshmen and sophomores living on-campus, with the opportunity for juniors and seniors to live oncampus. With only 8,600 beds for 39,000 undergraduate students, we are miles away from bestin-class elite. This would serve our students, but also redound to the brand benefit of the institution.

CFO Jantz stated this is an equation of finding a balance between increasing rates and increasing capacity to obtain more bond financing. This is where the Board will have to help us understand if we raise rents faster or what are some of our other opportunities. Under the current constraints of regulations from the state coupled with our debt portfolio for housing, we can build 1,000 beds starting construction in 2026. To get to our goal of 10,000 new beds, with our current restraints would take until 2049.

There are three opportunities to address our fundamental constraints:

- 1. Significant additional state support
- 2. Reconsideration of Florida Statute 1010.62 that governs university debt policy

3. Fundamental shift in delivery where, working with the Division of Bond Finance, we explore Public-Private Partnership (P3) options

Our three go-forward options are:

- 1. Finance, Build, and Own (maximize capacity and create housing construction master plan)
- 2. P3 (work with BOG/DBF to find a P3 partner to expedite build-out of on-campus housing)
- 3. Hybrid (continue to finance and build undergraduate housing study P3 for graduate needs)

Trustee Brandon asked VP White what her perfect model would look like, if we did not have any statutory restrictions. VP White stated the Hybrid option, to best accommodate undergraduate and graduate students.

Senior Vice President Dave Kratzer commented we must remember you are going to need food facilities as part of the structure of the housing units themselves or standalone units, and the transportation infrastructure that surrounds those. All that being said, I think this is doable if we find the right model. VP White agreed with SVP Kratzer's comments and added location and community as key elements of focus. We need to study this and get student input. President Sasse agreed with SVP Kratzer and VP White's comments and added the two most obviously locations on campus are the southwest edge and west center. To Trustee O'Keefe's point earlier, the potential of creating more suite style units instead of single or double capacity. The best example is the University of Utah where they are building a lot of 36 bed super suites. Basically, your room is your bed with a door for private space, 3-4 common areas, and 10 single bathrooms. Student satisfaction with this is 80%/20%. It's a way to increase student satisfaction without incurring extra expense. Lastly, the student I am most concerned with are the ones that cannot afford to live close to campus and spend a lot of time commuting because we do not have an economical option on campus for them. Our retention data shows they are the least well served students and one of the reasons we need to view this as a cause. Trustee Brandon agreed and added when we think about recruiting, we have a serious need for Athletics housing. VP White commented part of the first round of Presidential Strategic Funding was secured for contracting a group that is conducting a housing study for us right now. We will have some solid data to help us in these discussions regarding inventory, capacity room types, proximity to campus, and age and quality of buildings. We have an ISIS list of which buildings we would take offline and in what order. Board Chair Hosseini highly recommended connecting the contracting group with Manfredi who created our Campus Master Plan and VP White agreed. President Sasse added he and AVP Cydney McGlothlin will meet with Manfredi next week.

CFO Jantz emphasized we estimate about \$180,000 to build a new bed. He noted at his alma mater Vanderbilt, the cost to build a new bed is \$350,000. It's an expensive undertaking and I want to make sure you're all aware, but that does not underscore the importance of what we're doing here. Vice President Dan Dillon commented there is data to support the direct line correlation between alumni affinity and on-campus experience. President Sasse agreed and added that type of data has been driving a lot of housing decisions at UVA over the last 5 years.

## 5.2 UF Health Update

CFO Jantz stated one of the things Committee Chair Powers and I were intentional about from day one is we are a comprehensive One UF. While we talk a lot about university operations which are very important, the larger part of our budget is UF Health. I have the privilege to introduce who will have his first opportunity to address the Board with a UF Health update.

President and System Chief Executive Officer of UF Health Dr. Steve Motew expressed his gratitude to the Board and President Sasse for entrusting him with the responsibility for the health, well-being, and care of Florida and for helping to move UF and UF Health forward. He added his special gratitude to Senior Vice President Dave Nelson for forging the path ahead and laying the foundation, he has been an unbelievable help in my onboarding. He highlighted 3 items in his update: Performance, Strategic Focus, and Celebrations and Projects.

## • Performance

Our financial performance aligns with Q3 FY2024. We are continuing to promote a combined roll up to view UF Health as a single unified One UF Health. We are performing better than budget and better year over year. There are a couple of specific components that are unique to FY2024, which are some one-time payments associated with 340B federal drug cost reduction program, some one-time catch-up payments associated with Medicaid, increases in volumes of case complexity in Central Florida and Jacksonville, and increases in case mix here in Gainesville. When we look at it by operating margin percent, we budgeted this year for about a break even and it looks like we are on track right now to end the year at about 1 to 1.3% of operating margin. Which is just the start of a trajectory that we have planned out to meet our capital needs over the next 5-to-7-years. Looking at financial performance, the standout here is St. John's and reflects the Flagler integration. There has been substantial miss on the expectations of operating loss. It's effectively been double. We have rapidly put in place action plans with management change and a focus on some exceedingly difficult, but necessary changes, so we can assure the communities in St. John's and Flagler know they are part of UF Health, and we support them. These plans are in action and should begin to manifest in our budget that we bring forward in FY2025. While we focus on the dollars, our main purpose in focusing on the success of UF Health as a business is so that we can fund providing care and growing the care that we provide to more Floridians. The quality of the care that we provide is of paramount importance. There are many external and internal benchmarks that we must identify quality. For this presentation, I will use Leapfrog, a conglomerate of independent large industry that came together to assess the value of what they were paying for in health care using a grade system, like a report card. Our UF Health report card is showing progress but is not where I want it to be. This will be one opportunity that we can use to show excellence in health care. I do want to highlight that here in Gainesville, we have maintained an A rating, which reflects a rigid focus on outcomes and quality. Although we have some in the C range particularly in Central Florida, they have shown substantial improvements within the last 3-to-6 months in patient experience and safety. One of the limitations of Leapfrog is that it's sometimes 2-to-3 years in our rears and they change the measurements often. I would expect and will plan to bring forward more discreet and relevant measures over the next year as we begin to refine how we measure quality and outcomes.

# • Strategic Focus

The tactical approach in the near-term is "appropriate systemization to reduce unwarranted variation." We want to assure that we focus on clinical excellence, which we define as the combination of the clinical care delivery tied and matched hand in hand with the academic integrity and success of UF. Clinical excellence does not exist without research, education, training, innovation, and unassailable patient safety. We will be working now to start thinking more like a system, so we could benefit in the expansion of our quality programs and to assure that we have fiscal responsibility where it is appropriate. Such as shared services, supply chain, and other infrastructure that allows us to really be leaner and more facile in achieving our clinical quality goals. We did implement \$200M system wide optimization surrounding supply chain and revenue cycle aligned with our clinical documentation. We do a mediocre job of telling people how sick our patients really are and that directly affects our reimbursement.

Board Chair Hosseini noted we will have a deeper dive into UF Health in September when they have a full year of financials. Sometime really soon we want to see all A's across the Leapfrog report card line and Dr. Motew agreed.

## • Celebrations and Projects

There have been an amazing set of growth plans put in place over the last 3-to-4+ years. Expanding strategically into both our core markets and adjacent areas to provide access, giving the ability of more of our communities to attach their health care to the UF Health System. He shared updates on ground breakings, ribbon cuttings, and openings for UF Health System projects in Gainesville, Ocala, Central Florida, St. John's, and Jacksonville.

Board Chair Hosseini reiterated his comments from earlier, I think we are going to have a bright future for the UF Health System with you.

# 5.3 UFICO Update

UFICO Chief Investment Officer Bill Reeser provided a review of Endowment follow-up items from the previous meeting. The primary CPI+5% benchmark has competing objectives: maintain the corpus "real" value for future beneficiaries and generate maximum spendable income stream for current needs. To quantify CPI+5%, inflation has averaged 3% annually over the previous 100 years and 2% annually over the previous 20 years. In FY2022, we experienced the largest spike in inflation in 40 years. Given the lower inflation environment in the years immediately prior, the longer-term trend line remains intact. Based on the 100-year average for inflation, CPI+5% equates to an 8% nominal return. The CPI+5% objective is not unique to UF. 80% of all endowments manage to a similar benchmark, either a nominal annual return of 7 to 8% range or a specific CPI+ benchmark. 75% of all endowments did not meet a CPI+5% objective over the previous 10-, 15-, 20- and 25-year time periods.

UFICO CIO Reeser continued by providing an update on the Operating Portfolio and strategy enhancements. We are in current discussions with the Treasurer and CFO's Office revisiting the appropriate allocation to liquidity versus growth for UF going forward. For all time periods greater than one year, the operating performance is comfortably ahead of its policy benchmark. For the one year and less time periods, the operating portfolio is behind the policy benchmark due to the private assets in the growth allocation not yet reflecting the recent run-in public markets.

# 6.0 New Business

Committee Chair Powers congratulated CFO Jantz on having the "Interim" removed from his title. She thanked Board Chair Hosseini for his generous 24/7 dedication working with the legislature to obtain state funding for UF. The entire reason for this radical transparency process is to show Tallahassee we have spent that money appropriately.

# 7.0 Adjourn

There being no further discussion, Committee Chair Powers adjourned the meeting at 4:16 p.m.

# **UF** Board of Trustees UNIVERSITY of FLORIDA

# COMMITTEE ON GOVERNANCE, GOVERNMENT RELATIONS AND INTERNAL AFFAIRS Meeting Minutes June 13, 2024 President's Room 215B, Emerson Alumni Hall University of Florida, Gainesville, FL Time Convened: 11:35 a.m. Time Adjourned: 12:14 p.m.

# Committee and Board members present:

Rahul Patel (Committee and Board Vice Chair), David L. Brandon, John E. Brinkman, Christopher T. Corr, James W. Heavener, Morteza "Mori" Hosseini (Board Chair), Sarah D. Lynne, Daniel T. O'Keefe, Marsha D. Powers, Fred S. Ridley, Patrick O. Zalupski, and Anita G. Zucker.

# **Others present:**

Ben Sasse, President; Scott Angle, Provost and Senior Vice President for Academic Affairs; Melissa Curry, Vice President for Human Resources; Dan Dillon, Vice President for Marketing and Senior Advisor; Kurt Dudas, Vice President/Jacksonville Lead; Elias Eldayrie, Vice President and Chief Information Officer; Robert Gilbert, Interim Senior Vice President for Agriculture and Natural Resources, Amy Hass, Vice President and General Counsel; Taylor Jantz, Chief Financial Officer; Mark Kaplan, Vice President for Government and Community Relations and University Secretary; David Kratzer, Senior Vice President for Construction, Facilities, and Auxiliary Operations; Maria Gutierrez Martin, Interim Vice President for Advancement; Stephen Motew, President and System Chief Executive Officer of UF Health; David Nelson, Senior Vice President for Health Affairs; Mary Parker, Vice President and Chief Enrollment Strategist; Raymond Sass, Vice President for Innovation and Partnerships; Penny Schwinn, Vice President for PK-12 and Pre-Bachelors Programs; Jim Staten, Senior Advisor to the President; Scott Stricklin, Director of Athletics; James Wegmann, Vice President for Communications; Heather White, Vice President for Student Life; members of the University of Florida community, and the public.

# 1.0 Call to Order and Welcome

Board and Committee Chair Mori Hosseini welcomed everyone in attendance and called the meeting to order at 11:35 a.m.

# 2.0 Verification of Quorum

Vice President and University Secretary Mark Kaplan verified a quorum with all members present, except Trustee Cole who had an excused absence.

# 3.0 Review and Approval of Minutes

March 7, 2024 and May 13, 2024

Board Chair Hosseini asked for a motion to approve the minutes from the March 7, 2024, Committee Meeting, and the May 14, 2024, Committee Pre-Meeting, which was made by Trustee Brandon and seconded by Trustee Corr. Board Chair Hosseini asked for further discussion, after which he asked for all in favor of the motion and any opposed, and the motion was approved unanimously.

# 4.0 Action Items

# **GGRIA1** Direct Support Organization Appointments

Vice President and General Counsel Amy Hass summarized the 52 Direct Support Organization (DSO) appointments before the committee for approval. The DSO appointments will serve for the normal terms within their bylaws. She expressed her gratitude to Trustee Corr, Trustee Powers, and Vice Chair Patel for their service on this Board, as well as our DSOs. For those Trustees who are going to serve on one of these DSOs or corporate boards, they will be deemed to have recused themselves from voting on the board to which they are nominated.

- Gator Boosters, Inc. (18): Richard Ahrens, Trey Burton, Dan Cross, Chris Doering, Jessie Eisner, Mike Garcia, Linda Hudson, Carey Jones, Jason Kelso, Tom McGurk, Michael Minton, Kathryn Oberto, Swati Patel, Mike Pearson, George Quinoy, Dean Saunders, Bob Snyder, Keith Tribble
- University of Florida Alumni Association, Inc. (19): Kim Beach, Tiffany Chatmon, Ann Covington, Fletcher Davidson, John Dicks, Charles Dorman, Tracy Fanara, Dakeyan Graham, Brendon Jonassaint, Ramon Looby, Ari Luxenberg, Shae Manigo, Daniel Martell, Isabella Montoya, Regina Rodriguez, Bryan Ruiz, Prineet Sharma, Sarah Stephens, Robert Taylor
- University of Florida Athletic Association (6): Kim Barton, Chris Corr, Alvin Cowans, Ed Evans, Preston Farrior, Joelen Merkel
- University of Florida Foundation, Inc. (7): Jose Costa, Linda Hudson, Chris Malachowsky, David Nelms, Rahel Patel, Christy Powell, Karen Unger
- UF Historic St. Augustine (1): Jane Adams
- University of Florida Investment Corporation, Inc. (1): Lindsay Lee

Additionally, we have 9 individuals proposed to serve as the inaugural members of the UF Health Corporation board. The term will begin July 1 through the end of 2024 or until such time as permanent full-term members are named. VP Hass expressed her gratitude to Trustee Powers for serving as Chair for the UF Health Transition Committee and her willingness to continue to serve as a member of the inaugural UF Health Corporation Board.

• **UF Health Corporation (9):** Amy M. Hass, Jennifer L. Hunt, Taylor Jantz, Alan Levine, Timothy E. Morey, Stephen J. Motew, David R. Nelson, Todd Neville, Marsha D. Powers

Board Chair Hosseini expressed his gratitude to Trustee Powers for agreeing to Chair the new UF Health Corporation board and for her hard work as Chair of the Transition Committee. Your experience with the hospital is priceless to our Board. President Sasse echoed Board Chair Hosseini and VP Hass's expressions of gratitude to everyone who has been involved with the hard work on these DSOs, particularly the UF Health Corporation board, and added his thanks to UF Health President & System Chief Executive Officer Steve Motew and Senior Vice President David Nelson. Board Chair Hosseini requested a deep dive into the UF Health financials from the last three years from Dr. Motew and Chief Financial Officer Taylor Jantz and both agreed. He emphasized UF Health is no different than UF, we demand excellence, we want UF Health to be at the top. There is no doubt in my mind that Dr. Motew will be successful at helping us attain that goal.

Board Chair Hosseini asked for any questions or further discussion. He then asked for a motion to approve Action Item GGRIA1 for recommendation to the Board for its approval on the Consent Agenda, which was made by Trustee Brandon, and second which was made by Trustee Ridley. Board Chair Hosseini asked for further discussion, and then asked for all in favor of the motion and any opposed, and the motion was approved unanimously.

# **GGRIA2 UF Regulations**

VP Hass stated at the direction of the Florida Legislature, the Florida Board of Governors (BOG) recently adopted SUS-specific design and construction procurement regulations. For UF to comply with these new regulations, we need to approve the repeal of University Regulations 3.070 (Acquisition of Professional and Design/Build Services), 3.071 (Acquisition of Construction Management Services), 3.072 (Construction Contract Bidding and Award (Contractor), 3.073 (Construction; Bid Protests (Contract Only)), 3.075 (Construction; Procedures for Payment under Unbonded Construction Projects), and 3.076 (Construction; Procedures to Contract for Construction Service) and approve the amendment of University Regulation 3.074 (Construction; Evaluations of Professional Services Providers, Design-Builders, Construction Managers and Contractors; Disqualification Procedure). She added Associate Vice President for Enterprise Projects and Senior Counsel Colt Little will provide an overview of the internal processes and policies during the FCI Committee.

Board Chair Hosseini requested VP Hass put together a bullet point process list and provide it to the Board and VP Hass agreed. Trustee Brandon made a motion to approve this action item and noted how much our procurement process has improved and expressed his gratitude to Board Chair Hosseini for his advocacy through three legislative sessions, fighting against a mountain of opposition. We have already seen tens-of-millions of dollars in benefit for the university and the state as a result. Board Chair Hosseini expressed his gratitude to Trustee Brandon for his steadfast dedication to accomplish this and the new procurement process.

Board Chair Hosseini asked for any questions or further discussion. He then asked for a motion to approve Action Item GGRIA2 for recommendation to the Board for its approval on the Consent Agenda, which was made by Trustee Brandon, and second which was made by Trustee Patel. Board Chair Hosseini asked for further discussion, and then asked for all in favor of the motion and any opposed, and the motion was approved unanimously.

# **GGRIA3 Facility Security Clearance**

VP Hass stated certain contracts between the university and federal government agencies and certain research at the university require a facility security clearance. This annual action item and resolution encompasses all 13 board members to alleviate the burden of each of them having to be screened and cleared individually. Approving this action item and Resolution R24-310 will confirm that members of the Board of Trustees will not require and will be formally excluded from access to all classified information disclosed to the entity, by designating University

President Ben Sasse as the senior managerial official who holds and manages the university's classified work and permits for us to contract with governmental entities in this controlled and classified space.

Board Chair Hosseini asked for any questions or further discussion. He then asked for a motion to approve Action Item GGRIA3 for recommendation to the Board for its approval on the Consent Agenda, which was made by Trustee Corr, and second which was made by Trustee Brandon. Board Chair Hosseini asked for further discussion, and then asked for all in favor of the motion and any opposed, and the motion was approved unanimously.

## GGRIA4 Operational Legislative Budget Request FY2025-26

VP Kaplan stated this time every year is when the Florida Board of Governors (BOG) requires each university submit operational and fixed capital outlay legislative budget requests for the next legislative session. Senior Vice President Dave Kratzer will present our fixed capital outlay legislative budget request for consideration during the FCI Committee. We are asking the Committee to recommend to the Board that it delegate to Board Chair Hosseini and President Sasse the authority to develop and approve the FY2025-26 Operational Legislative Budget Request and related documents for submission to the BOG.

Board Chair Hosseini asked for any questions or further discussion. He then asked for a motion to approve Action Item GGRIA4 for recommendation to the Board for its approval on the Consent Agenda, which was made by Trustee Brandon, and second which was made by Trustee Corr. Board Chair Hosseini asked for further discussion, and then asked for all in favor of the motion and any opposed, and the motion was approved unanimously.

### **GGRIA5** Governance Standards

VP Hass emphasized the importance of our governance standards to ensure appropriate visibility and communication with the Board to ensure every trustee can effectively fulfill their fiduciary duties and responsibilities while serving on the Board. With the creation of the UF Health Corporation, the Governance Enhancement Standards (GES) have been amended to reflect the oversight by this entity. The GES for this board will continue to be reviewed and amended as needed. Additionally, she and Board Vice Chair Patel have untaken the project of reviewing our processes with the Chief Audit Executive and AC Committee. She shared an internal process document with the Board for projects and items that require the Board Chair's and President's approvals. This will be a standard document that will be shared with UF leadership and be used for auditing purposes.

Board Chair Hosseini emphasized the importance of all UF Leadership reviewing this process to ensure they know what is required for the Board Chair's and President's approvals. These projects and items will be audited. No member of UF leadership will be able to say I didn't know. He stated there will be an audit of the Chair and President approval process.

VP Hass added before the Committee votes on this action item, Trustee Marsha Powers will provide an update on the UF Health Transition Committee activities that led us up to these governance standards and what will happen next, so the Board has full visibility and awareness. Trustee Powers noted since our March board meeting, the transition committee has developed

and recommended the following items: corporate bylaws, allocation of authority and financial thresholds, major capital approval process, transition of the hospital practice plan boards to non-fiduciary advisory boards with a focus on quality, credentialing, community, and philanthropy, and specific action items per the governance standards. Our next steps are to put forward the inaugural UF Health Corporation board members for approval. The UF Health Board will meet in July to formally approve the corporate bylaws, appoint committee chairs, and populate committees, will determine the governance and board structure of the local hospitals practice plans (i.e. the advisory boards), amend the articles of incorporation and bylaws to establish the UF Health Corporation as a sole corporate member, and to define the governance role of these entities.

Board Chair Hosseini expressed his gratitude to Trustee Powers for her great work. He asked Vice Chair Patel to review all university governance standards and see what updates we need to consider, and he agreed.

Board Chair Hosseini asked for any questions or further discussion. He then asked for a motion to approve Action Item GGRIA5 for recommendation to the Board for its approval on the Consent Agenda, which was made by Trustee Brandon, and second which was made by Trustee Patel. Board Chair Hosseini asked for further discussion, and then asked for all in favor of the motion and any opposed, and the motion was approved unanimously.

# **GGRIA6 Government Contracting Entity**

VP Hass stated UF currently holds a Secret Clearance. To enhance our rankings, move up in our elite status, and gain prominence in the cutting edge and national security space, we need to attain a Top-Secret Clearance. Vice President David Norton and College of Engineering Interim Dean Forrest Masters have been eager to help UF enhance our institutional clearance. One way to obtain this Top-Secret Clearance for UF would be to form a Government Contracting Entity Direct Support Organization that will oversee and manage the classified and controlled portfolio of research. This would alleviate the burden of each trustee from having to be screened and cleared individually. Obtaining Top-Secret Clearance would allow us to take advantage of opportunities with various Defense and Intelligence Agencies. These are areas where we have talent in our faculty, but we need a higher level of clearance to capitalize on that talent. Bringing this to the Board is step one. If we decide to move forward to step two, we will bring the proposed articles of incorporation and bylaws to the Board for approval at a future board meeting.

Board Chair Hosseini requested the proposed articles of incorporation and bylaws be presented to the Board before this action item is voted on. This action item was removed from the agenda.

### 5.0 Discussion Items

### 5.1 UF Health Transition Committee Update

Trustee Powers provided her update during the GGRIA5 Governance Standards action item.

# 5.2 Government Update

VP Kaplan noted this was an extraordinary legislative session for the University of Florida, reflecting half a billion dollars of impact for UF across facilities, operations, and increased spending flexibility. The Governor approved the budget yesterday with virtually every priority of

UF, UF Health, and UF/IFAS receiving the Governor's approval. It is hard to overstate the amount of work that goes into helping a session like this to be so successful, especially in light of the many headwinds that were present. He shared his congratulations and gratitude to Board Chair Hosseini for his tireless advocacy. President Sasse echoed VP Kaplan's comments.

VP Kaplan provided an update on the Live Healthy Legislation that focused on growing Florida's healthcare workforce, expanding access, and incenting innovation in health care, as well as strengthening behavioral health. This landmark package was a combination of \$1.1B in appropriations and substantive bills that impact many aspects of health care for our fellow Floridians. Senate President Kathleen Passidomo led the development of the Live Healthy initiative and made it her top priority. She was determined to have policymakers address the strain on our health care system of 300,000 new Floridians moving to this state each year and not bringing their health care providers with them.

Board Chair Hosseini emphasized the importance of UF Health Shands and UF Health Jacksonville receiving the new Behavioral Health Teaching Hospitals designation. Dr. Motew echoed Board Chair Hosseini's comments and added the opportunity to serve Florida, particularly through UF Health, is unique, particularly as it relates to behavioral health. We know the impact of mental illness, substance addiction and abuse. The new legislation really drives excellence in care and outcome. We already have substantial movement on the three broad goals outlined by VP Kaplan. He expressed his gratitude for the tremendous efforts put forth to take care of our communities. Board Chair Hosseini commented the Board looks forward to hearing from Dr. Motew about this designation and other issues at a future board meeting.

VP Kaplan outlined next steps to implementation, making the most of this opportunity, and ensuring we can continue to serve our communities.

- Linking Industry to Nursing Education (LINE) proposal
- Grant funding for Behavioral Health Teaching Hospitals
- New flexibility for some health professionals
- Ongoing compliance with qualifications for Behavioral Health Teaching Hospitals
- ACGME resident slots
- Innovation grant opportunities

Trustee Brandon commented Dr. Chris McCurdy is developing plant-based alternatives for addiction. He asked if there is a collaboration opportunity with that research and this behavioral health designation. Senior Vice President David Nelson stated there is a great opportunity to link behavioral health research at UF Health Scripps with natural resource research. Trustee Brandon added this unique component would put us above other institutions receiving this funding. SVP Nelson echoed comments made by VPs Parker and White earlier in the AFSSPRSC Committee. This is truly a team effort, and he expressed his gratitude to the Board Chair and President for leading the charge. It was a massive effort that did not happen overnight, it was a 3-to-5-year process. Board Chair Hosseini expressed his gratitude to SVP Nelson and echoed his comments. The Board and President represent UF. We would not be able to ask for this kind of funding without the guarantee of UF being able to deliver. Board Chair Hosseini expressed his gratitude

to VP Kaplan, to Monica Rodriguez, and to the rest of the lobby team for their amazing work to get us where we are. SVP Nelson and VP Kaplan echoed Board Chair Hosseini's comments.

# 6.0 New Business

There was no new business to come before the committee.

# 7.0 Adjourn

There being no further discussion, Board and Committee Chair Hosseini adjourned the meeting at 12:14 p.m.

# **UF** Board of Trustees UNIVERSITY of FLORIDA

BOARD MEETING MINUTES June 13, 2024 President's Ballroom 215B, Emerson Alumni Hall University of Florida, Gainesville, FL Time Convened: 4:40 p.m. Time Adjourned: 5:12 p.m.

# Committee and Board members present:

Morteza "Mori" Hosseini (Board Chair), Rahul Patel (Board Vice Chair), David L. Brandon, John E. Brinkman, Christopher T. Corr, James W. Heavener, Sarah D. Lynne, Daniel T. O'Keefe, Marsha D. Powers, Fred S. Ridley, Patrick O. Zalupski, and Anita G. Zucker.

# **Others present:**

Ben Sasse, President; Scott Angle, Provost and Senior Vice President for Academic Affairs; Melissa Curry, Vice President for Human Resources; Dan Dillon, Vice President for Marketing and Senior Advisor; Kurt Dudas, Vice President/Jacksonville Lead; Elias Eldayrie, Vice President and Chief Information Officer; Robert Gilbert, Interim Senior Vice President for Agriculture and Natural Resources, Amy Hass, Vice President and General Counsel; Taylor Jantz, Chief Financial Officer; Mark Kaplan, Vice President for Government and Community Relations and University Secretary; David Kratzer, Senior Vice President for Construction, Facilities, and Auxiliary Operations; Maria Gutierrez Martin, Interim Vice President for Advancement; Stephen Motew, President and System Chief Executive Officer of UF Health; David Nelson, Senior Vice President for Health Affairs; Mary Parker, Vice President and Chief Enrollment Strategist; Raymond Sass, Vice President for Innovation and Partnerships; Penny Schwinn, Vice President for PK-12 and Pre-Bachelors Programs; Jim Staten, Senior Advisor to the President; Scott Stricklin, Director of Athletics; James Wegmann, Vice President for Communications; Heather White, Vice President for Student Life; members of the University of Florida community, and the public.

# 1.0 Call to Order and Welcome

Board Chair Mori Hosseini welcomed everyone in attendance and called the meeting to order at 4:40 p.m.

# 2.0 Verification of Quorum

Vice President and University Secretary Mark Kaplan verified a quorum with all members present, except Trustee Cole who had an excused absence.

# 3.0 Recognition

Board Chair Hosseini recognized Trustee and Faculty Senate Chair Danaya Wright. A resolution honoring her was read into the record at the meeting.

# 4.0 Public Comment

Vice President and General Counsel Amy Hass informed the Board there were no public comment to come before the Board.

#### 5.0 Action Items (Consent) BOT Minutes

# Board Chair Hosseini asked if there were any additions or corrections to the minutes. Hearing none, he asked for a motion to approve the meeting minutes from March 8, 2024 and April 29, 2024, which was made by Trustee O'Keefe and seconded by Trustee Brandon. Board Chair Hosseini asked for further discussion, after which he asked for all in favor of the motion and any opposed, and the motion was approved unanimously.

Board Chair Hosseini stated there are 23 action items on the consent agenda for 5 committees. The action items were taken up by committee.

# Committee on Academic, Faculty, Student Success, Public Relations and Strategic Communications (AFSSPRSC)

Board Chair Hosseini asked for a motion to approve Action Items AFSSPRSC1, AFSSPRSC2, and AFSSPRSC3, AFSSPRSC4, AFSSPRSC5, AFSSPRSC6, and AFSSPRSC7, which was made by Trustee Zucker and seconded by Trustee Lynne. Board Chair Hosseini asked for further discussion, after which he asked for all in favor of the motion and any opposed, and the motion was approved unanimously.

# Committee on Audit and Compliance (AC)

Board Chair Hosseini asked for a motion to approve Action Item AC1, which was made by Trustee Powers and seconded by Trustee Brandon. Board Chair Hosseini asked for further discussion, after which he asked for all in favor of the motion and any opposed, and the motion was approved unanimously.

# **Committee on Facilities and Capital Investments (FCI)**

Board Chair Hosseini stated Action Item FCI2 would be amended as follows: authority granted by this action to the Board of Trustees Chair and President to make any necessary changes together before finalizing the fixed capital outlay legislative budget request for FY2025.

Board Chair Hosseini asked for a motion to approve Action Items FCI1, FCI2, FCI3, FCI4, FCI5, FCI6, and FCI7, which was made by Trustee Brandon and seconded by Trustee Patel. Board Chair Hosseini asked for further discussion, after which he asked for all in favor of the motion and any opposed, and the motion was approved unanimously.

# Committee on Finance, Strategic Planning and Performance Metrics (FSPPM)

Board Chair Hosseini stated Action Item FSPPM1 would be amended as follows: authority granted by this action to the Board of Trustees Chair and President to review and budget adjustments or amendments as necessary to the preliminary operating budget FY2025.

Board Chair Hosseini asked for a motion to approve Action Items FSPPM1, FSPPM2, and FSPPM3, which was made by Trustee Ridley and seconded by Trustee Zucker. Board Chair Hosseini asked

for further discussion, after which he asked for all in favor of the motion and any opposed, and the motion was approved unanimously.

# Committee on Governance, Government Relations and Internal Affairs (GGRIA)

Board Chair Hosseini stated Action Item GGRIA6 has been removed from the agenda until the draft articles of incorporation and bylaws are received.

Board Chair Hosseini asked for a motion to approve Action Items GGRIA1, GGRIA2, GGRIA3, GGRIA4, and GGRIA5, which was made by Trustee Patel and seconded by Trustee Brandon. Board Chair Hosseini asked for further discussion, after which he asked for all in favor of the motion and any opposed, and the motion was approved unanimously.

# 6.0 Action Items (Non-Consent)

Board Chair Hosseini stated there are 2 action items on the non-consent agenda for 2 committees. The action items were taken up by committee.

# Committee on Academic, Faculty, Student Success, Public Relations and Strategic Communications (AFSSPRSC)

Board Chair Hosseini stated Action Item AFSSPRSC8 Degree Program Termination Process has been created from Discussion Item 5.7 on the AFSSPRSC Committee agenda. This action item has been added to the Full Board agenda for approval. The Board received and reviewed a hard copy of the Academic Program Review Process discussed in the AFSSPRSC Committee.

Board Chair Hosseini asked for a motion to approve Action Item AFSSPRSC8, which was made by Trustee Zucker and seconded by Trustee O'Keefe. Board Chair Hosseini asked for further discussion, after which he asked for all in favor of the motion and any opposed, and the motion was approved unanimously.

# **Committee on Facilities and Capital Investments (FCI)**

Board Chair Hosseini asked for a motion to approve the naming Action Item FCI8, which was made by Trustee Brandon and seconded by Trustee Powers. Board Chair Hosseini asked for further discussion, after which he asked for all in favor of the motion and any opposed, and the motion was approved unanimously.

# 7.0 President's Report

President Sasse commented this university and the Board have done incredible things. Your accomplishments are things that other institutions can only dream about. A huge part of that is because of Board Chair Hosseini who had yet another amazing victory receiving no vetoes to the budget signed by the Governor yesterday.

He highlighted:

- **P.K. Yonge:** The takeaway is there are no decisions coming for this academic year. However, we do have a focus on the ongoing upgrade opportunities before us.
- Jacksonville: Jacksonville is an opportunity for us to experiment with some of what the disruption is bringing to educational program delivery. Jacksonville is a virtue in and of itself,

but it's also an opportunity for us to use it as a doodle pad for things that we might bring back to the mothership in Gainesville.

- Model of Marketing & One UF: The agency model of marketing that Vice President Dan Dillon presented is a wonderful illustration of ways we're continuing to build out the one UF initiative. These are not private initiatives, interests, and ambitions. We have a shared desire to tear down silos and walls to create more interdisciplinary research and service to our students.
- UF Health Corporation: The UF Health Corporate stand up has been something that we talked about at this meeting 1-year ago as possibly the biggest item on our agenda for the coming year. We focused on all of UF Health building toward a system and the new leadership hires we needed to make in that space. I think there is so much opportunity in our ambition to get to a \$10B health delivery organization that has all the adjacencies of great biomedical research 30-to-40-years from now. When you look back on our moment, I think we're going to see there were two revolutions happening in higher education: a big data revolution and a life sciences revolution. We need to be delivering great patient care to also have enough throughput in this model to get all the research benefits out of that. And I think we're capturing a lot of those synergies in the build out of that system. I just want to express my gratitude to Board Chair Hosseini, Trustee Marsha Powers, and to the all the Board members.
- Athletics: I'll begin by saying Go Gators Baseball, Softball, and Track & Field! Our Men's Track & Field team won their 3<sup>rd</sup> straight NCAA Outdoor Championship! I'd like to preview a little of what Athletic Director Scott Stricklin will discuss at the Retreat. The conversation we want to have will be about the future of the athletics model. 84% of our revenue is from football, 12% of our revenue is from men's basketball, and 4% of revenue is from 19 sports collectively. The settlement that we are in the process of is a collective defense agreement of the power five conferences. The NCAA is the sixth defendant. This is publicly disclosed, and we are not violating the confidences of our joint agreement. We are in negotiations across that settlement group to write down a \$9B plaintiffs and ask down to \$2.77B. The complications of what comes next in a world where we would spend 22% of our revenue, not just streaming and broadcast media rights, but also on gate and partnerships. This creates a whole new era in a world where a lot of us believe in many of the glories of amateurism, I don't I don't think there's any of us who want to resist the idea that those generating lots of the revenue will be compensated. The challenge is many aspects of our college athletics are still amateur. The love of amateurism is pretty special, and the courts are trying to drive us to say there is no such thing as amateur sports anymore. Everything is professional and so we have a lot of complexities to navigate. We will touch on some of the legal and potential financial issues that we'll have to consider in the future.
- UFICO: We have a lot of talented people at UFICO. And at the same time, there are some aspects of performance in recent years that are not what we would like it to be. That's not meant as a criticism, it's just an objective comparison to certain peer institutions. It's reflective of the fact that there has been a conservative management philosophy kind of creating the guardrails of what UFICO was managing toward. There are legitimate, reasonable debates people can have about the model we currently have versus an outsourced CIO model. UFICO has been self-consciously conservatively positioned and that needs to be rethought. Also, many of the management implications of that will redound to some personnel conversations. Board Chair Hosseini has asked me to make a few soft recommendations about where we go next.

- **Personnel:** We talked a lot in Chair Brandon's FCI Committee with SVP Dave Kratzer at the podium about the facilities and construction upgrades that we're going through. And the fact that we're 4 years into COVID supply chains shortages, which create a lot of conflicts with projects being delivered on time and on budget. In my 1.25 years here, one of the people that I'm very happy to have brought on board by persuading him out of retirement for a while and join this project was SVP Kratzer. His wife is persuading him that he's going back mostly into retirement in about a month. We are so sad about that, but we're grateful for the service we've gotten from him. And we persuaded him to stay involved in a part-time capacity. Mr. Randy Phillipson will be our new Vice President for Construction and Facilities as of July 22.
- Post October 7<sup>th</sup> / Free Speech / Protest: I want to express my gratitude to this Board for your unwavering embrace of our shared belief in the freedom of speech, assembly, and protest, as well as the purpose of UF not being a backdrop for building a tent encampment or stealing somebody else's graduation. There are time, place, and manner restrictions. People have free speech, and we embrace it. We support it. They have protest rights, and we've supported that for over a month, as there were protests basically every day on the Plaza of the Americas. And yet we also wanted to be sure that our rules were clear, time, place, and manner restrictions, and that graduation was about celebrating the families and the student's accomplishments. Commencement was a great success. It renounced to the benefit and the credit of everybody on the leadership team, our Board, and our police force, who were just unbelievably professional.
- Performance Metrics / Executive Searches / Post-Tenure Review: Tomorrow, we are going to talk a more about performance metrics that we're putting in place. We want to distinguish between enterprise-wide metrics that we want the board to have in common, all of them on an annual basis and some of them on a quarterly basis. That's to be distinguished from a bunch of performance metrics that sit inside every vice presidential vertical. I'll also give an update on a few of the most sensitive, executive searches that we have going on. Finally, later this summer the Board will be getting an update from the Provost and I about post tenure review cumulative numbers. From the very beginning, we've said we did not view post tenure review as a burden, but as an opportunity. We wanted to celebrate some of our greatest performers, help folks that needed to be on a performance improvement plan or needed to think about whether a teaching and research hybrid role was really the right role for them. Maybe they had ceased to do research at certain points in their career and we can help migrate those folks back to a full-time teaching load. And we've had a lot of successes. This is the first year of a 5-year process to move through all the currently tenured faculty. I'm sure in that iteration, we're going to get better from year one to year or two to year three. But I think we're going to report to you that this has been a very successful first year of this project.

# 8.0 New Business

There was no new business to come before the Board.

### 9.0 Comments by the Chair of the Board

Board Chair Hosseini shared his congratulations to the recent spring graduates.

### 10.0 Adjourn

There being no further discussion, Board Chair Mori Hosseini adjourned the meeting at 5:12 p.m.